
To: Members of the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Councillor Vanessa Allen, Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P., Dr Simon Davey, 
Councillor Melanie Stevens, Councillor Michael Tickner and Councillor Stephen Wells

A meeting of the Standards Committee will be held at Committee Room 6 - Bromley 
Civic Centre on TUESDAY 22 JANUARY 2019 AT 7.00 PM 

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

A G E N D A

1   TO APPOINT A CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR 2018/19 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

4  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETIING 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to the Chairman of this 
Committee must be received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  
Therefore please ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 
5pm on Wednesday 16th January 2018.

5   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22ND FEBRUARY 2018 AND MATTERS 
ARISING 
(Pages 1 - 4)

6   DISCUSSION WITH HEAD OF AUDIT 

7   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
(Pages 5 - 28)

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Graham Walton
graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7743
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 14 January 2019



8   MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT 
(Pages 29 - 42)

9  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED 

The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during 
consideration of the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if 
members of the Press and public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of confidential information.

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description

10  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
22ND FEBRUARY 2018
(Pages 43 - 44)

Information which is likely to 
reveal the identity of an 
individual. 

11  MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT: 
APPENDIX - COMPLAINTS 
(Pages 45 - 46)

Information which is likely to 
reveal the identity of an 
individual. 



1

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 22 February 2018

Present:

Councillor Ian F. Payne (Chairman)
Councillor Vanessa Allen (Vice-Chairman)
Dr Simon Davey, Councillor David Livett, Mr Nicholas 
Marcar, Councillor Michael Tickner and Councillor Stephen 
Wells

10  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

11  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

12  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING 
THE MEETING

No questions had been submitted before the deadline. The Chairman 
reported that he had been contacted by a member of the public asking 
whether there was any intention to change the Council’s Code of Conduct in 
the light of the Development Control Committee’s recent re-consideration of 
the planning application for the proposed Bullers Wood Boys School. This 
issue would be considered by the Committee. 

13  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6TH JULY 2017 AND 
MATTERS ARISING

It was noted that the Head of Audit should have been invited to attend this 
meeting; this would now be arranged for the Committee’s next meeting.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6th July 2017 be 
confirmed.

14  MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT
Report CSD18033

The Committee considered a report from the director of Corporate Services as 
Monitoring Officer summarising a number of issues for consideration.

Code of Conduct

At its last meeting, the Committee had agreed that no changes were needed 
to the Code of Conduct except that a Member with a disclosable pecuniary 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Standards Committee
22 February 2018

2

interest should be allowed to remain in a meeting provided that they did not 
address the Committee where that right would be available to a member of 
the public.

One area where the Code could be made more consistent was in the issue of 
declaration of non-pecuniary, personal interests. Bromley’s Code of Conduct 
went beyond the statutory provision in requiring Members to register a range 
of personal interests and gifts and hospitality. Although most Members 
routinely declared such interests when they arose in meetings, there was no 
requirement to do so in the Council’s Code of Conduct. The Committee 
concluded that the current Code of Conduct worked well and there was no 
need to make a further change. It was suggested that a print-out of the 
Register of Interests could be brought to each meeting so that it could be 
inspected by members of the public.

It was confirmed that new Councillors would be provided with a copy of the 
Code of Conduct.

RESOLVED that no further changes to the Code of conduct be 
recommended.

Registration of Gifts and Hospitality

The Committee received a schedule (Appendix A to the report) setting out all 
gifts and hospitality declarations made by Councillors in the current Council – 
from May 2014. It was suggested that the Committee should review these 
declarations at their meetings on a regular basis. Committee Members 
commented that in some cases it was not clear who had provided hospitality – 
this was as important as the date, the event and the value. It was also 
suggested that there should be a RAG system linked to different values of 
hospitality received.  

RESOLVED that the declarations of Gifts and Hospitality made since 
May 2014 be noted.

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards

The Committee on Standards in Public Life was conducting a stakeholder 
review of local government ethical standards and was carrying out a public 
consultation closing on 18th May 2018. The Standards Committee was asked 
to consider whether Bromley should respond to the consultation, and whether 
there were any areas of particular concern.

The Committee considered that the main area of concern was the lack of 
sanctions open to Standards Committees, and the potential reliance on party 
groups to suspend or discipline their Members. There were criminal penalties 
for serious failures to register or declare disclosable pecuniary interests, but 
the vast majority of complaints against Members were fairly trivial and often 
related to issues where the complainant was not happy with a Council 
decision, or where Councillors had, legitimately, expressed a strong view on 

Page 2



Standards Committee
22 February 2018

3

an issue. The Monitoring Officer highlighted that Councillors were not 
disqualified from office if convicted of a criminal offence unless given a 
sentence, suspended or not, of at least eighteen months. This was a loophole 
that could potentially see a Member convicted of a serious offence but still 
able to continue as a Councillor.

The Monitoring Officer confirmed that the Committee could still hold hearings 
to investigate particular complaints, but that where this was required he had to 
consult with one of the Independent Persons.    

A Member noted that there were stiff penalties for offences involving electoral 
fraud – Councillor Michael Tickner declared that his company was involved in 
providing postal services for the Electoral Commission. 

RESOLVED that a response be sent to the consultation setting out the 
Committee’s concerns about disqualification from office and the lack of 
sanctions available to Standards Committees, as outlined above.

Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

The Committee was informed of the timetable for the production of the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2017/18, which formed a part of the Council’s 
statutory accounts. With the example of the statement for 2016/17 before 
them, the Committee provided comments as follows –

Page 26: Members asked whether the Standards Committee had the right 
profile, and whether the public, contractors and officers were aware of the 
processes for complaining against Councillors.

Page 28: Regarding the review of effectiveness of the governance framework, 
a member suggested that the phrase “detailed checklist” was perhaps a little 
too glib. Members asked whether there was indeed a thorough check, or just 
a paper exercise.   

Page 30: Members noted the comment in the text that Internal Audit was 
“generally” compliant, and suggested stronger language could be used. It was 
also suggested that evidence was needed to support the comment that the 
authority’s fraud arrangements were satisfactory.

Page 31: The Committee noted that although the formal Ofsted judgement of 
Inadequate for Children’s Services was still in place until the next inspection, 
the Council had confronted the issues and the direction of travel was very 
positive.  

Page 32: Officers would check whether reference to the Youth Justice Board 
was required in relation to the Youth Offending Service.

Councillor Wells, as chairman of the Contracts Sub-Committee, asked 
whether the Council could insist that potential contractors complied with the 
same levels of ethical conduct as the Council. The monitoring Officer 

Page 3



Standards Committee
22 February 2018

4

responded that although equalities issues could be taken into account, 
broadly speaking the Council had to take a commercial view when assessing 
tenders. 

RESOLVED that the Committee’s comments as set out above be fed in 
to the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement.

Work Programme

Members proposed that three meetings a year be timetabled, and commented 
that they wished to examine the Council’s whistle-blowing procedures at their 
next meeting. 

RESOLVED that three meetings per annum be included in the Council’s 
Programme of Meetings.

15  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS SUBSEQUENTLY 
AMENDED

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summary
refers to matters

involving exempt information

16  MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT - APPENDIX D: 
COMPLAINTS

The Committee considered a part 2 appendix containing details of complaints 
received about individual councillors.

As this was the last meeting before the local elections, the Chairman offered 
his thanks to everyone present for their work. 

The Meeting ended at 9.12 pm

Chairman

Page 4



 1

Report No.
CSD19020

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date: Tuesday 22 January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1    Each year the Council must prepare an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which forms a 
part of the Council’s statutory accounts. Comments are sought from this Committee to inform 
the new statement for the 2018/19 financial year. The final version of the 2017/18 AGS is 
attached to this report as the basis for development of the new statement.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee provides comments for the 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy
1.    Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable: 

3. Budget head/performance centre:  Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head:  £350,650 

5. Source of funding:  General Fund
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  6.79 FTE 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  Not applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not applicable

Page 6



 3

3. Background

3.1   The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 require the Council to conduct, at least
Annually, a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to approve an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS), prepared in accordance with proper practices in relation 
to internal control.

3.2   The Council must assure itself that its internal control environment is effective. Regulation 3 of
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, requires audited bodies to ensure that they have a 
sound system of internal control which:

(a) facilitates the effectiveness of its functions and the achievement of its aims and
objectives;

(b) ensures that the financial management and operational management of the authority is
   effective; and

(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

Regulation 6 requires that each financial year, the authority must:

(a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control; and
(b) Prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

3.3    The AGS must be prepared in accordance with proper practices as defined in the CIPFA
publication “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016”. The
guidance outlines seven core principles of governance focusing on the systems and processes
for the direction and control of the Council and its activities whereby it engages with and leads
the community. There is no prescribed format.

3.4.  The annual review and development of the Annual Governance Statement is undertaken by the 
Internal Audit Team in consultation with the Corporate Leadership Team, and includes input 
from the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Democratic Services Manager and Corporate 
Risk Management Group.

3.5   The assurance framework sets out the sources of assurance that are relied upon on to enable
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. These include the work of Internal Audit, and
of directors and managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control environment. It also includes the comments made by the
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. The Head of Audit opinion set
out in the internal audit annual report forms a key element of the review.

3.6   The timetable for the production of the 2018/19 AGS is set out in Appendix A; the 2017/18 AGS 
is at Appendix B.

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Children and Vulnerable Adults/Policy/
Financial/Personnel/Legal/Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

None

Page 7



 4

Appendix A

Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 - Timetable 
Action By when (2019) 

2017/18 Annual Governance Statement presented to Standards 
Committee  

22nd January 

2017/18 Annual Governance Statement sent to relevant departments to 
update wording 
2018/19 Assurance Statements sent to Corporate Leadership Team 
members 

8th February 
(Confirmed agenda item  
5th February meeting) 

Departmental Assurance Statements signed by members of Corporate 
Leadership Team  

1st March 

Draft Annual Governance Statement to Corporate Leadership Team  5th April 
(Confirmed agenda item  
2nd April meeting) 

Draft Annual Governance Statement agreed by Corporate Risk 
Management Group 

3rd May 
(meeting arranged 1st May) 

Any revisions to wording of Annual Governance Statement finalised 17th May 

Draft Annual Governance Statements submitted to Technical and 
Control 

Deadline 31st May 

Annual Governance Statement to Audit Sub Committee for approval 4th June 
(provisional) 

2 x Annual Governance Statements signed by the Chief Executive and 
Leader of the Council and submitted to Technical and Control 
  

28th June  

Annual Governance Action Plan completed and diarised for review in 
line with Audit Sub Committee Meetings 

February 2020

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



 1

Report No.
CSD19010

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date: Tuesday 22 January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1 To update the Committee on a number of standards issues -

 Independent Persons 
 Whistle-blowing procedures 
 Committee for Standards in Public Life
 Dispensations Granted
 Gifts and Hospitality Register
 Register of Interests 
 Work Programme 

 Complaints (see part 2 appendix)
________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee -

(1) Considers and notes the Monitoring Officer’s Report. 

(2) Comments on whether a replacement Independent Person should be appointed 
(paragraphs 3.1/3.2.)

(3)  Comments on whether the Mayor’s Consort, if a serving Councillor, should be 
required to declare gifts and hospitality received when acting in the role of consort 
(paragraph 3.7.) 

(4) Considers its future work programme (paragraphs 3.9/3.10.)

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Representation 

4. Total current budget for this head: £1,067,960

5. Source of funding: 2018/19 revenue budget
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   Not applicable 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Not applicable   
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: Local Government Acts 1972, 2000 and 
subsequent legislation.

2. Call-in: Not Applicable: This report does not involve an executive decision. 
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  The standards system has the 
potential to impact on any person who has contact with a Member of Bromley Council where 
that person considers that the Member has breached the Code of Conduct.

________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not applicable.

Page 30



 3

3. COMMENTARY

Independent Persons 

3.1    Every principal local authority must appoint at least one independent person to be consulted by 
the authority or by members of the authority on standards issues.  Mr Nicholas Marcar has 
recently resigned as an Independent Person, leaving the Council with just one Independent 
Person, Dr Simon Davey. The changes to the Standards system brought about by the Localism 
Act 2011 have greatly reduced the involvement of Independent Persons compared to the former 
arrangements where there were several co-opted members of the Standards Committee, a 
need for frequent Sub-Committee meetings and the Chairman was an co-opted member. 
However, it is still useful to have two Independent Persons, not only to have a broader input at 
Committee meetings, but so that different parties on a particular issue are not dependent on the 
same person for independent advice and also to avoid conflicts of interest. Should Dr Davey 
also resign, the authority could potentially be without an Independent Person for a period.

3.2    The Committee’s views are sought on the following potential courses of action -

 To continue with just one Independent Person
 To advertise for a new Independent Person to replace Mr Marcar
 To explore the possibility of sharing Independent Persons with a neighbouring authority.  

Whistle-blowing procedures 

3.3   The Council’s whistle-blowing policy is called “Raising Concerns” and is available on the 
Council’s website and intranet. The policy directs staff with concerns that they feel they cannot 
raise with their managers firstly to the Director of Corporate Services or the Head of Audit, or 
alternatively to the Chief Executive or the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Audit Sub-
Committee. A copy of the policy is attached as Appendix 1.

Committee for Standards in Public Life

3.4    At its last meeting on 22nd February 2018 the Committee provided some comments for a public 
consultation on local government ethical standards being carried out by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life. The Committee’s submission, which focussed on the need for a range 
of effective sanctions to be available for Standards Committees where there were breaches of 
the Code of Conduct, is attached at Appendix 2. The report of the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life is expected to be published on 30th January 2019 and any significant issues will be 
reported to the next meeting.

Dispensations Granted

3.5   The Council has delegated to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with members of the 
Urgency Committee, the authority to grant dispensations to Councillors to attend and speak at 
meetings of the authority in circumstances where, under the Code of Conduct, they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest (Scheme of Delegation to Officer, Part 2A, 3 (xxv)). Where these 
dispensations have been sought, they are typically about town planning issues, where the Code 
of Conduct means that councillors have less opportunity to assert their interests than other 
residents, or about employment, where technically there is a disclosable pecuniary interest, but 
in practice that interest is not significant. In order to be transparent, applications for 
dispensations since the delegation was first made are listed in Appendix 3. It is proposed that 
future dispensations are reported at each meeting of this Committee.

Page 31



 4

Gifts and Hospitality Register

3.6    Under the Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to declare gifts and hospitality received 
due to their role as Councillors over the value of £25. These are published on the Council 
website. At its last meeting the Committee requested an annual update on Gifts and Hospitality 
declarations, and a schedule of the gifts and hospitality received since then is attached as 
Appendix 4.  Declarations have been registered by 14 serving Members; 46 members have not 
declared any gifts or hospitality in this period.

3.7    One issue that has arisen since the Committee’s last meeting relates to declarations made by 
the Mayor and the Mayor’s Consort. Gifts and hospitality received by the Mayor in the course of 
his or her role are not normally declared in the Gifts and Hospitality Register (although they are 
recorded by the Mayor’s Office.) This year, the Mayor’s Consort is also a Councillor, Councillor 
Mike Botting, so there is a question that does not usually arise about whether he needs to 
record gifts and hospitality received during his role as Consort (as differentiated from his role as 
a Councillor). The approach taken so far is that he has declared gifts and hospitality received 
when acting as Consort, but the Committee’s views are sought on whether this is necessary. 

Register of Interests 

3.8    Under the Localism Act 2011, the Register of Interests is required to be published on the 
Council’s website, and a link to each Councillor’s declaration is provided on their page. At its 
last meeting the Committee suggested that a print-out of these declarations should be available 
at each meeting of the Committee for inspection by members of the public, and this will be 
done.

Work Programme 

3.9 At its last meeting, the Committee suggested that it should have three meetings a year 
scheduled in the Council’s programme of meetings. The 2019/20 programme of meetings is 
being prepared for approval by the General Purposes and Licensing Committee at its meeting 
on 12th February 2019. The following dates have provisionally been scheduled -

 Thursday 11th July 2019
 Thursday 31st October 2019
 Thursday 12th March 2020      

3.10  Members of the Committee are also requested to consider what issues they wish to consider at   
future meetings.  

Complaints (see Appendix 5 - part 2)

3.11  A summary of recent complaints against Councillors, since the Committee’s last meeting, is 
included on the part 2 agenda, as these complaints contain personal details about Councillors 
and complainants, and also the Councillors concerned have not necessarily done anything that 
is clearly against the Code of Conduct.

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children/Policy/
Financial/personnel/Legal/Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

None

Page 32



 5

Appendix 1

RAISING CONCERNS (WHISTLEBLOWING) POLICY 

INTRODUCTION

1. Employees are often the first to realise that there may be something wrong within the Council. 
Usually these concerns are easily resolved.  However, when the concern feels serious 
because it is about a possible fraud, corruption or misuse of position that might affect others or 
the council itself, it can be difficult to know what to do.

2. You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to yourself, 
perhaps feeling it’s none of your business or that it’s only a suspicion.  You may feel that 
raising the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers or to the Council.  You may 
decide to say something but find that you have spoken to the wrong person or raised the issue 
in the wrong way and are not sure what to do next.

3. The Public Interest Disclosure Act provides workers with protection from dismissal or other 
damage as a result of making a disclosure of information in the public interest about 
wrongdoing at work. The Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Members are committed to 
adhering to the Public Interest Disclosure Act and to provisions contained therein.   Provided 
you are acting honestly and reasonably believe it to be in the public interest, it does not matter 
if you are mistaken.

4. The Council is committed to running the organisation in the best way possible and to do so we 
need your help.  We have introduced this policy to reassure you that it is safe and acceptable 
to speak up and to enable you to raise any concern you may have about malpractice at an 
early stage and in the right way.   Rather than wait for proof, we would prefer you to raise the 
matter when it is still a concern.

5. This Raising Concerns Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees and members 
to raise serious concerns. This policy applies to all those who work for us; whether full-time or 
part-time, employed through an agency, contractors or as a volunteer.  If you have a concern, 
please let us know.

6. These procedures are in addition to the Council’s complaints procedures and other statutory 
reporting procedures applying to some departments. If, however, you wish to make a 
complaint about your employment or how you have been treated, please use the grievance 
procedure - which you can get from One Bromley or HR officer. This Raising Concerns Policy 
is primarily for concerns where the interests of others or of the organisation itself are at risk. 
These include:

 conduct which is an offence or a breach of law
 disclosures related to miscarriages of justice
 health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other employees
 the unauthorised use of public funds
 possible fraud and corruption
 sexual, physical, verbal or financial abuse of clients

If in doubt - raise it!

OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU

7.  The Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Members are committed to this policy.  If you raise a 
genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your job or suffering any 
form of retribution as a result.  We will not tolerate the harassment or victimisation of anyone 
raising a genuine concern.  Provided you are acting honestly and reasonably believe it to be in 

Page 33



 6

the public interest, it does not matter if you are mistaken or if there is an innocent explanation 
for your concerns.  Of course we do not extend this assurance to someone who maliciously 
raises a matter they know is untrue.  

8. With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly.  However, we recognise 
that there may be circumstances when you would prefer to speak to someone in confidence 
first.  If this is the case, please say so at the outset.  If you ask us not to disclose your identity, 
we will not do so without your consent unless required by law.  You should understand that 
there may be times when we are unable to resolve a concern without revealing your identity, 
for example where your personal evidence is essential.  In such cases, we will discuss with 
you whether and how the matter can best proceed.

9. Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are it will be much more difficult for us to 
look into the matter.  We will not be able to protect your position or to give you feedback.  
Accordingly you should not assume we can provide the assurances we offer in the same way 
if you report a concern anonymously.

10. If you are unsure about raising a concern you can get independent advice from Public 
Concern at Work which is an independent charity on 020 7404 6609 or by email at 
helpline@pcaw.org.uk. Their lawyers can talk you through your options and help you raise a 
concern about malpractice at work.  

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY

11.As a first step, you should normally raise concerns with your immediate manager or team 
leader.  This depends, however, on the seriousness and sensitivity of the issues involved and 
who is suspected of the malpractice. 

12. If you are unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason,  please raise the 
matter with:

Mark Bowen OR David Hogan

Director of Corporate Services Head of Audit
Bromley Civic Centre, Bromley Civic Centre,
Stockwell Close, Stockwell Close,
Bromley, Kent. Bromley, Kent.
T: 020 8313 4355 T: 020 8313 4886
mark.bowen@bromley.gov.uk david.hogan@bromley.gov.uk

13. If these channels have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that the matter 
is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please contact 
Ade Adetosoye
Interim Chief Executive
Bromley Civic Centre, 
Stockwell Close,
Bromley, Kent.
T: 020 8313 4652 
ade.adetosoye@bromley.gov.uk

Page 34

mailto:helpline@pcaw.org.uk
mailto:mark.bowen@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:mark.bowen@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:david.hogan@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:ade.adetosoye@bromley.gov.uk


 7

Neil Reddin - Chairman, OR William Huntington-Thresher -Vice Chairman, 
Audit Sub- Committee Audit Sub- Committee
c/o Members' Room, c/o Members' Room,
Bromley Civic Centre, Bromley Civic Centre,
Stockwell Close, Stockwell Close
Bromley, Kent. Bromley, Kent.
BR1 3UH BR1 3UH
T: 07850 921767 T: 07733 116799
neil.reddin@bromley.gov.uk william@ocat.co.uk

14.The concern could be raised verbally or in writing. If you want to raise the matter in 
confidence, please say so at the outset so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

HOW THE COUNCIL WILL RESPOND 

15.Once you have told us of your concern, we will assess it and consider what action may be 
appropriate.  This may involve an informal review, an internal inquiry or a more formal 
investigation.  We will tell you who will be handling the matter, how you can contact them, and 
what further assistance we may need from you.

  
16. If you ask, we will write to you summarising your concern and setting out how we propose to 

handle it and provide a timetable for feedback.  If we have misunderstood the concern or there 
is any information missing please let us know.

17.When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might best be 
resolved.  If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that you tell us at the 
outset.  If we think your concern falls more properly within our grievance, bullying and 
harassment or other relevant procedure, we will let you know.

18. Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation.  Please 
note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions we take where 
this would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person.

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT

19.The Monitoring Officer (who is the Director of Corporate Services) has overall responsibility for 
the maintenance and operation of this policy.  That officer maintains a record of concerns 
raised and the outcomes (but in a form which does not endanger your confidentiality) and will 
report as necessary to the Council.

HOW THE MATTER CAN BE TAKEN FURTHER 

20.While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise such matters internally, 
we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can properly report matters to 
outside bodies, such as regulators or the police. Public Concern at Work (see paragraph 10) 
or your union will be able to advise you on such an option and on the circumstances in which 
you may be able to contact an outside body safely.

Page 35

mailto:neil.reddin@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:neil.reddin@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:william@ocat.co.uk


 8

Appendix 2

Committee on Standards in Public Life
Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: 
Stakeholder Consultation

Submission from the Standards Committee 
of the London Borough of Bromley

1.1 The Standards Committee of the London Borough of Bromley considered the consultation on 
local government ethical standards at its meeting on 22nd February 2018. The Committee is 
comprised of five elected members of the Council, from all political groups, plus two co-opted 
members. This submission is based on the Committee’s comments.

1.2 The Committee wished to make one particular comment in relation to the consultation. This is a 
general comment applicable across local government in England and is related most closely to 
consultation questions (b) about significant gaps in the ethical standards regime and (f) on sanctions 
for councillor misconduct.

1.3 The Committee’s concern is about the lack of sanctions available to Standards Committees, and 
the reliance on party groups to discipline their own members. There are criminal penalties in place for 
serious failures to register or declare pecuniary interests, and Councillors can be disqualified if they 
are convicted of a criminal offence and receive a sentence of eighteen months or longer. However, 
there is a potential loophole in that a councillor could be convicted of a relatively serious criminal 
offence, but still remain in office as a councillor if the sentence was below eighteen months. The 
Committee considered that the eighteen month limit should potentially be lowered. 

1.4 In practice, the complaints made against Councillors in Bromley in recent years have been of a 
relatively minor nature, and there has been no need to impose any significant sanctions. However, 
there is a concern that, below the level of serious criminal conduct, there seems to be very little in the 
way of effective sanctions that a Standards Committee could apply beyond naming and shaming and 
certain limited administrative actions. Even sanctions such as requiring an apology or attendance at 
appropriate training cannot be made mandatory, and removal or suspension from committees can 
only be carried out with the cooperation of the relevant party group. This also means that there is a 
lack of any deterrent effect.  

1.5 In conclusion, the Standards Committee would like to see consideration of how a broader range 
of sanctions can be made available that spans the current divide between the penalties for 
committing serious criminal offences and the limited actions that are needed for very minor matters. 
These could include giving Standards Committees powers to suspend councillors for temporary 
periods, remove them from committees or other offices, or require mandatory training.    

Contact:

Graham Walton
Democratic Services Manager,
London Borough of Bromley
graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Page 36

mailto:graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk


 9

Appendix 3

Dispensations granted by the Monitoring Officer 

Cllr Request 
Received

Date of 
Decision

Decision Notes

Simon 
Fawthrop

4/9/18 5/9/18 A dispensation be granted to allow 
Cllr Simon Fawthrop to attend and 
speak at Executive, Resources and 
Contracts PDS Committee on 5th 
September 2018 when the report on 
Social Care Case Management 
System on the Executive’s Agenda 
for the meeting on 12th September 
2018 is discussed. 
(As an employee of British Telecom, 
the Council’s IT contractor who have 
been involved in assessing this 
project, Cllr Fawthrop would 
potentially have a pecuniary interest. 
However, he considers that this 
interest is tangential at this stage, 
arising only from his employment, 
and that there are no immediate 
recommendations in relation to BT, 
or that would benefit BT or himself.)

Dispensation re-
confirmed 14/11/18 
by Mark Bowen for 
ER&C PDS, 
Executive and full 
Council meetings in 
November/December

Will 
Harmer

4/9/18 5/9/18 A dispensation be granted to allow 
Cllr Will Harmer to attend and speak 
at Executive, Resources and 
Contracts PDS Committee on 5th 
September 2018 when the report on 
Social Care Case Management 
System on the Executive’s Agenda 
for the meeting on 12th September 
2018 is discussed. 
(Cllr Harmer is also employed by BT 
- See note above.)

Confirmed at ER&C 
PDS Committee on 
5/9/18

Dispensation re-
confirmed 14/11/18 
by Mark Bowen for 
ER&C PDS, 
Executive and full 
Council meetings in 
November/December 

Nicholas 
Bennett

30/4/15 20/5/15 That an unconditional dispensation 
be granted to Councillor Nicholas 
Bennett J.P. to be allowed to attend 
and address Plans Sub-Committee 
No. 1 on 21st May 2015 on his 
planning application for 18 Upper 
Park Road, Bromley. The 
dispensation applies to any 
subsequent meetings on the same 
application until the end of the 
current Council.  

Page 37



 10

Simon 
Fawthrop

7/7/15 9/7/15 In the absence of any objection or 
request to refer the matter to a 
meeting of the Urgency Committee I 
confirm that  you have a dispensation 
1. To remain in the room and chair 
the BAE item if there is any 
discussion this evening
2. To report the views of the 
Committee to the Executive

It is on balance appropriate to extend 
the dispensation to cover any 
matters which arise from any 
discussion at E&R tonight or from the 
Executive decision next week save 
where they directly affect the 
employment of Mrs Fawthrop which 
come back to your committee for the 
remainder of the municipal year.

Katy 
Boughey

22/7/15 29/7/15 That an unconditional dispensation 
be granted to Councillor Katy 
Boughey  to be allowed to attend and 
address Plans Sub-Committee No. 2 
on 30th July 2015 on her planning 
application for 6 The Meadow, 
Chislehurst (15/01930). The 
dispensation applies to any 
subsequent meetings on the same 
application until the end of the 
current Council.  

(Decision made by 
Susan Fraser, Acting 
Monitoring Officer)

David 
Livett

19/8/15 26/8/15 That an unconditional dispensation 
be granted to Councillor David Livett 
to be allowed to attend and address 
Plans Sub-Committee No. 4 on 27th 
August  2015 on the planning 
application for Chislehurst House, 
143 Chislehurst Road, Orpington 
(15/00887). The dispensation applies 
to any subsequent meetings on the 
same application until the end of the 
current Council.  

Katy 
Boughey 

15/10/15 21/10/15 That an unconditional dispensation 
be granted to Councillor Katy 
Boughey  to be allowed to attend and 
address Plans Sub-Committee No. 4 
on 22nd October 2015 on her 
planning application for 46 Camden 
Park Road, Chislehurst 
(15/03351/FULL1). The dispensation 
applies to any subsequent meetings 
on the same application until the end 
of the current Council.  

(Decision made by 
Susan Fraser, Acting 

Monitoring Officer)

Page 38



 11

Mary 
Cooke

5/10/16 12/10/16 That an unconditional dispensation 
be granted to Cllr Mary Cooke to be 
allowed to attend and address Plans 
Sub-Committee No. 2 on 3rd 
November 2016 on her planning 
application for 45 Tootswood Road 
(16/04088). The dispensation applies 
to any subsequent meetings on the 
same or similar applications until the 
end of the current Council year. 

Page 39



 12

Appendix 4

Gifts and Hospitality Declarations (since February 2018)

Councillor Date Provider Gift or hospitality

Graham Arthur 22nd June 
2018

New owners of 
Liberata

Guards Polo Club, Windsor - Polo Match and 
lunch, with taxi journeys. 

18th August 
2018

Biggin Hill Airport 
Ltd

Biggin Hill Airshow - 2 Complimentary tickets 
and hospitality.

Julian 
Benington

18th August 
2018

Biggin Hill Airport 
Ltd

Biggin Hill Airshow with Mrs Benington. The 
Invitation included lunch and tea/coffee, but 
other drinks were in a cash bar.

Nicholas 
Bennett 

May 2018 Mytime Active 
Board of Trustees

Bottle of Chateau Neuf Du Pape and Decanter 
on retirement as a trustee

18 August 
2018

Biggin Hill airport 
Ltd

2 Tickets and hospitality to the Biggin Hill 
Airshow

Mike Botting

(Mayor’s 
Consort 
2018/19)

6th July 
2018

Bromley Cricket 
Club

Bromley Cricket Club - v England XI 
fundraising event at Bromley Cricket Club, 98 
Plaistow Lane, Bromley, BR1 3AS - 
Accompanied the Mayor as her consort (cost 
of a seat at the event approximately £25).

16th August 
2018

A resident Received a bottle of Taylor's Port from a 
resident as thanks for assistance with a 
planning matter - donated to the Mayor's 
Charity Raffle

18th August 
2018

Chairman of Biggin 
Hill Airport Ltd

Received hospitality as the Mayor's Consort at 
the Biggin Hill Air Show 

7th-10th 
September 
2018

Lord Mayor of 
Neuwied

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
consort on an official visit to our Twin Town 
Neuwied in Germany. The cost of the trip was 
funded by ourselves, the London Borough of 
Bromley and the Lord Mayor of Neuwied. 
Hospitality received included travel, 
accommodation and food exceeding £25.

11th 
September 
2018

Province of West 
Kent Masons/ 
Giacomo’s 
Ristorante Italiano 

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
consort to the Giacomo’s Ristorante Italiano in 
Morleys Road, Sevenoaks where the Mayor 
was presented with a cheque towards her 
charities by the Province of West Kent 
Masons. A meal was provided which would 
have exceeded £25.

23rd 
September 
2018

Sundridge Park 
Golf Club

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
consort to celebrate the new Club Captain’s 
‘Drive In’ and lunch to follow. The hospitality 
received was in excess of £25.

Page 40



 13

29th 
September 
2018

Ada and Albert 
Charity

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
Consort to the inaugural Ball for the Ada and 
Albert Charity at the Warren Sports Club. The 
hospitality that I received was in excess of 
£25.

5th October 
2018

St. Christopher’s 
Hospice/ 
Beaverwood Club

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
Consort to the St. Christopher’s Hospice 
Charity fundraiser at the Beaverwood Club, 
Beaverwood Road, Chislehurst. The hospitality 
that I received was in excess of £25.

12th 
October 
2018

The Warren Sports 
Club.

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
Consort to the Healthcare Ball at the Warren 
Sports Club. The hospitality that I received 
was in excess of £25.

18th 
November 
2018

Asian Curry 
Awards - the 
Grosvenor House 
Hotel

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
Consort to the Asian Curry Awards at the 
Grosvenor House Hotel, Park Lane. London. 
W1. The hospitality that I received was in 
excess of £25.

30th 
November 
2018

Cystic Fibrosis 
Ball/Club Langley,

Accompanied the Mayor of Bromley as her 
Consort to the Cystic Fibrosis Ball at Club 
Langley, Hawksbrook Lane, Beckenham. The 
hospitality that I received was in excess of 
£25.

Katy Boughey 8th June 
2018

Bruce and Anna 
Walker

Lunch at Bullers Wood School 

7th 
December 
2018

The Substantia 
Group

Lunch 

19th 
December 
2018

Bruce Walker Lunch at Bullers Wood School 

David 
Cartwright

December 
2018

Churchill Theatre Pantomime tickets (4 at reduced price of £20 
each)

Peter Fortune 25th July 
2018

A resident A bottle of champagne for resolving a long 
term environmental/utility issue.

David Jefferys 7th July 
2018

Mytime Active Attended London Youth Games 

Charles Joel 18th March 
2018

Langley Park 
Centre for the 
Performing Arts

Two complimentary tickets worth £10 each.

6th January 
2019

A ward resident A financial gift to use for a meal for myself and 
my wife.

Page 41



 14

Michael 
Rutherford

8th July 
2018

MyTime Active VIP pass for the London Youth Games and 
two items of Team Bromley clothing (total 
value about £60.)

Diane Smith 26th August 
2018

Abbots Way 
Allotments

Gift of bottle of Brandy (value unknown) for 
judging exhibits at the Annual Site Show

Melanie 
Stevens 

18th August 
2018

Biggin Hill Airport 
Ltd

Guest, with Mr Stevens, at the Air Show. The 
Invitation included lunch and tea/coffee, but 
other drinks were in a cash bar.

1st 
December 
2018

Churchill Theatre 2 Pantomime Tickets at the half price cost of 
£40.00, given directly to be used by our 
Looked After Children

Stephen Wells 18th August 
2018

Biggin Hill Airport 
Ltd

Free ticket to airshow (made equivalent 
donation to the Chartwell Cancer Trust)

Angela Wilkins 27th July 
2018

Ballers FC Football shirt with personalised stripe 

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22nd FEBRUARY 2018 AND MATTERS ARISING
	7 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	Appendix B - AGS 2017 18

	8 MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT
	10 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22nd FEBRUARY 2018
	11 MONITORING OFFICER'S GENERAL REPORT: APPENDIX - COMPLAINTS

